
UNITEO STATES ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECnON AGENCY 


REGlON ~ 


SAM NU!'-!'N 

ATLAJ'..'TA rp.OERAL CENTER 

61 FORSYTH STREET 

ATLANTA GEORGlA 30303 -8%0 


CERTIFIED MAIL ,EEB 17 2011 
RETUR,'1 RECEIPT REQUESTED 

Mr. Wallace E. Goodwin 
APCOM, a division of 

State Industries, Inc. 
500 Tennessee Waltz Parkway 
Ashland Cily, Tennessee 37015 

SUBJECT: 	 Stale Industries, Tnc. 
Consent Agreement and Final Order 
Docket No. EPCRA-04-2011-2022(b) 

Dear Mr. Goodwin: 

Endosed please find an exei:Uted ropy of the Consent Agreement and Final Order 
(CAFO) that resolves tbe Emergency Planning and Community Right-tn-Know Act of 1986 
(EPCRA) mattcr (Dockel No. EPCRA-04-2011-2022(b)) involving Stat< Industries, Inc. The 
CAFO was filed with the Regional Hearing Clerk, as required by 40 C.F.R. Part 22 and became 
effective on the date of the tiling. 

Also enclosed, pJease nnd a l:0PY of the "Notice of Securities and Exchange Commission 
Registrants' Duty to Disclose Environmental Legal ProcC<.~ings." This document puts you on 
notice of your potential duty to disclose 10 Ibe Security and Exchange Commission (SEC) any 
environmental enforcement actions taken by the Envirorunental Prota..'tion Agency (EPA). If 
you have any questions with regards to the SEC's environmental disclosure requirements, you 
may refetto the contact phone number at the bottom of the SEC Notice. 

If you have any questions, please ~a11 Mr. Andrew Porter at (404) 562-9184. 

Sincerely. 

~ p /1~'"
~4J'-r~ 

Caron B. Fakontlf, Chief 
BPCRA Enforcement Section 

Enclosures 

!ntemel ~ iVRL}. http;//www.el'vtgov 

fJeeyet~yclliible ~ Pwt,.,o with Vege\abkl Oil Sa""", 'nJ.;$ on ROCft::\e<I Paper (M'l'lImum :,()% <>ootroMumllr) 




UNITED STATES ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTI0K AGENCY 

REGION 4 

IN THE MATTER OF: ) .- - "j 

) Docket Number: EPCRA-04-2011-21)22(h)-
Swte Industries, Inc, ) 

~ -J 

) -~-

Respondent ) 

~~-) 

CONSENT AGREEMENI AND FlNAI,QBDER 

1v. Nf!!gn; of the Action 

1. This j::; a civil penalty proceeding pursuant to Section 325 of !.he Emergency 
Planning and Community Right-to-Know Act (EPCRA), 42 L $,(' § 11045, and pursuant to the 
Consolidated Rule::> ui' Practice Govcming the Administrative A:'scssment ofCiviJ Penalties and 
the Revocation/Termination or Suspension of Permits (Consolidated Ruics), codified at 40 
C.F.R. Part 22, Complainant is the Director of the Air, Pe:;ticides and Toxks !Vianagement 
Divish)n, Region 4, United States Environmental ProLe<;lion Agency (EPA). Respondent is State 
Inuustries, Inc, 

2. Complainant and Respondent have conferred for the purpose of settlement 
pursuant to 40 c,P,R. § 22.18(b) and tlt'l'>ire to resolve this matiel' and settle tbe allegations 
dcscribed herein without it fonnni hearing. Therefore, without the taking or any evidence or 
testimony, the making of any argument, or the adjudication of any issue in this matter, and in 
accordance with 40 C,F',R § § 22.11(b) and 22.l8(h), this Conscnt Agrt't'menl and Final Order 
(C'AFO) will ~imultanoously '..;ommel)\.'e and concludl,; this matteL 

IL PrcJimiruu)' Statements 

3, The authority to take action under Section 325 of EPCRA. 42 U.S.C § 11045, is 
vested in the Administrator of EPA.. The Administrator of EPA has delegated this authority 
under EPCRA to the Regional Admini:illators by EPA Delegation 22~3~A, dated:May 11,1994. 
The Rt'gional Administr'dtor, Region 4, ha& rooclcgatcrl this authority to the Director, Air, 
Pesticides: and TOX1cS Management Division, by EPA Region 4 Delegation 22·J·A, dated 
Nuvcmbt'I 8,1994. Pur1:iuant to that dc1cgalion, the Dircctor ofthe Air, Pesticides and Toxics 
Management Division has the authority to commence an enforcement action as- the Complainant 
in this maUer. 

4. Re..Gpondent is State Industries, Inc., a corporation doing business in the Slate of 
TcnnL':Si'iI.:C, 

5, Respondent is a '·person'" as defined ill Section 329{7) ofEPCRA, 42 U.S.C. 
§ 11049(7), 



6, Respondent owns and operates a "'facility" as that term is defined by Section 
329(4) ofEPCRA, 42 u<s<c. § 11049(4t 

7. Respondent's facility is l<x:ate<J at 125 Southea'>t Parkway, Franklin. 'j'cnnessee. 

III. EPA's AHggmlQ11s. of Viola:!;).9Jls 

ViQl®ons of EPCRA Section 312 

8< Section 312 of EPCRA, 42 U<S<c. § 11022, and the regulatiuns foulld at 40 
C.F.R. Part :370, provide that the owner or operator of a facility that is required to prepare Qr 
have availablt: a Materia) Safety Data Sheet (MSDS) for hazardou:. chemicals under the 
Uccupational Safety and Health Act of 1970 lOSHA) and regulations promulgated IDlder that 
Act, shall submit to the Loeal.Emergency Planning Committee (LEPC), the State Emergency 
Response Commission (SERe), and lhe lire department with jurisdiction over the facility. 011 or 
befoIe Marc.h 1 annually, a completed emergency and hazardous chemical inventory form (Tier I 
or Tier II} a." described in 40 C.F.R. Part 370, containing the information required by that part for 
hazardow chemk,a,ls: present at the facility at anyone time in the calendar year in amounts equal 
to or greater than 10,000 pounds and containing the information requ1red by that part for 
':Xlrernely hazardous substances (EHS) present at the facility at anyone time in amounts equal to 
or greater than the threshold planning quantity (TPQ) or 50U pounds, whichever is less. 

9. Al some time during the caJendar years of2008, 2007, and 2006, sulfuric add 
was present at the facility in an amount equal to Of grt:ater than 500 pounds. 

10. Sulfuric add is an "extremely hazardous substance" as defined under Section 
329(3) orEPCRA, 42 U<S<C § 11049(3). for which Respondent is required to prepare or have 
avaitable an MSDS under O;:;HA at its facility. 

II. Respondent failed to ~ubmil a complctc-d Emergent)' and Hazardous Chemical 
Inventory Form for sulfunc acid to the SERe. the LCPC, and fire deparunent with jurisdiction 
over the facility for calt'mlar years 2008, 2007, and 2006, by March J of follO\ving year. 

12. Rcspcndcnt violated the reporting requirements of Section 312 of EPCRA. 42 
U.S.C. § 11022. at its facility for calendar years: 2008, 2007, {lud 2006, and is therefore subject to 
the assessment of civil pcnaHles under Section 325 of EPCRA. 42 U.S.C. § 11045. 

13< Pursuant to Section 325(0) of EPCRA. 42 U.S<C § 11045(c). and 40 CFK Part 
19, EPA mity as!)(;;ss a civil penalty of not more than $37,500 for each violation that occurred 
after January 12, 2009. Each day a violation of Section 312 continues constitutes n separate 
violation< Civil perntl1;", under Section 325«) of EPCRA 42 U$<C § 11045(e). may be 
assessed by Adrnlni'itrotive Order. 

Violation> ofEPCRA Se1,'tjoJl 313 

14. Section 313 of EPCRA, 42 U$<C. § 11 023, and 40 CLR< §§ 372<22 and 372<30, 
require the owner or ope-rator of a Iltci!ity thal (a) has 10 or more full-time employees~ (b) is in a 
Standard Industrial Classillcation (SIC) major group or industry lisle<! in 40 CFK § 37223(a) 
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for which the corresponding Norlh American Industry Classification System (NAICS) subsector 
and industry codes are listed in 40 C,F,R, §§ 372,23Ib) and 372,23(e»: and (e) manufactured, 
processed, or olh~rwise used a toxic chcmlcallisted in Section 313(c) and 40 C.F.R. § 372,65. in 
excess ofan applicable thre,hold quantity established under EPCRA Section 313(1) and sci forth 
in 40 C.F.K § 372.25, during the calendar year, to complete and submit a toxic chemical release 
inventory reporting POnTI R (EPA Fonn 9350-1) using readily available data, or reasonable 
estimates of the .unounls vI'loxic chemicals involved to the Administrator of EPA and to the 
State in which the facility is located, by July 1 for the preceding calendar year fbr each toxic 
chemic·al known by the owner or operator to be manufaetured~ processed, or otherwise li."Ied in 
quantities exceeding the estahll~hed threshold quantity during the preceding calendar year. 

15, As set forth at EPCRA Section 313(1) and 40 c.r,R. § 372,25, the reporting 
threshold amount for a toxic chemical manufactured or processed at a facmty is 25.000 pounds 
per calendar year. The reporting threshold for a toxic chemical otherwise used at a facility is 
10,000 pounds, 

16, Respondent has 10 or more ful1-timeemployees. as defined at 40 CF,R, § 372.3 
at its facility. 

17. Respondent's facility is classified under NAteS code 335228. 

1&. Respondent's fadlity is classified in n covered NAICS cDde as described at 40 
erR § 37223, 

19. Zinc compounds an.: toxic chemicals Jisted under El'CRA Section 313(c) and 40 
C.F,R, § 372,65. 

20, Respondent's facility processed zinc compounds in excess of the 25,000 pound 
threshold quantily established under EPCRA Section 3]3(1) and 40 c'F,R. 372.25, doring 
calendar years 2008, 2007, and 2006. 

21. Respondent failed to submil a Fonn R lbr :lIne compuunds to the Ailministf'.ttQr of 
EPA and to the official designated by the Governor ufthe State ofTenne$see hy July 1 of the 
required reporting year. 

22. Respondent violated the reporting requirements of Section 313 ofEl'CR.A~ 42 
U8,C. § 11023, at its liwility for calendar years 2008, 2007, and 2006, for zinc c{)mpound, and 
is therefore subject to the assessment of penalties under Section 325 ofEPCR..t\, 42 U.S.c. § 
11045, 

23, EPA has alleged vlolations of Section 313 with regard to coppl,~r ~lt Respondent's 
facility for calendar years 2006, 2007, 2008. Ba.'ied on the unique circumstances ofthis case, 
EPA is exercising its enforcement discretion and is not pursuing penalties for copper based on 
those allegatioill>. 
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24. Pursuant to Section 325(c) ofEPCRA, 42 U.S.C. *11045(c), and 40 C.F.R. Part 
19, EPA may assess a civil penalty of not more than $32,500 for each violation of Section 313 
that Dccurred on or after March 15,2004, increu::;ing lo $371500 after January 12,2009. Each day 
a violation orSection 313 continues constitutes a separate violation. Civil penalties under 
Section 325(0) of EPCRA, 42 U.S.C. § 11045(c), may be ""esscd by an Administrative Order. 

IV. Consent Agreement 

25, Fm the purposes or this CAFO) Respondent admits the jurisdictional allegations 
:;et out ahove but neither admits nor denies the factual allegations set out above. 

26. Respondent waives any right tv contest the aBcgations and its right to appeal the 
proposed final order accompanying the Consent A green"l:enL 

27. Respondent consent..r; to the assessment of and agrees to pay the civil penalty a~ 
set lorth in this CAJ'O. 

28. Respo11deru certifies that as of the date of its execution of this CAFO, it is in 
oompliam:e with all relevant requirements of EPCRA at the facility. Without admitting liability 
under applicable lm.v, Respondent agrees prospectively to submit Form H fonus for copper and 
zinc compounus where applicablt: in the future. and Respondent agree::: to submit Forni R fonm; 
as ifRespondent's current handling ofcopper constJtutes manufacture, processing, or other use 
lor PUfPO»e' ufEPCRA Section 313. 

29" CompHam:c with this CAf'O shall resolve the allegations of violations contained 
herein. This CAFO shall not otherwise affect any liability of Respondent to the United States 
other than m; expres~d herem, Neither EPA nor Complainant waives any right to bring an 
enforcement action against Respondent for a violation ofany federal or state statute1 regulation 
or pcrmit~ to initiate an action lOT imminent and substantial endangt.TIUent; or to pUThue lTiminal 
enforcement. 

30. Complainant and Respondent agree to setde this matter hy their execution ofthi$ 
CAFO. The parties agree that the settlement orthis matter is in the public Interest and that this 
CAFO is cunsi:;;tent with the applicable reqnirements of EPCRr'\. 

V. Final Order 

31. Respondent shall pay an EPCRA civil penalty of SIXTY ONE THOUSAND 
DOLLARS ($61,000), lor the viol.tions alleged in Section Ill. Payment shall he paid within 
rhirty (30) days of the effective date of tbis CAFO. 

32. Respondent shall pay the EPeRA penalty by fOf\varding a cashier's or certified 
check, payable to: "Treasurer, United State~ of America," to one of the following addresses: 

By Mail: BX Overnight: 
U.S. Environmental Protection Agency U.S. Bank 
Fines and Penalties 1005 Convention Plu7,(1 
Cincinnati Finance Center Mail Station SL-MO-C2GL 
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P.O. Box 979077 St. Louis, Missouri 63101 

$1. Louis, Missouri 63197v9000 

The check shall reference on its t1tCC the name and the Docket Number ofthe CAFO. 

33, At the time ofpaymcnt, Respondent shall send a separate copy urthe check, and a 
written statement that payment has been madl~ in accordance with this CAFO, to the following 
persons at the following addresses: 

Regional IIearing Clerk 
U.S. EPA, Region 4 
61 Forsyth Street, S.W. 
Atlanta, Georgia 30303 

Andrew Porter 
U.S. EPA, Region 4 
Air, Pesticides & Toxies Management D1vis10n 
61 Fors}th Street, S. W. 
Atlanta, Georgia 30303 

Saum.li Wilson 
U.S. EPA, Region 4 
Office of Environmental Accouutabilhy 
61 Forsyth Street, S.W. 
Atlanta, Georgia 30303 

34. For the purposes ofstate and federal income taxes, Respondent shaH not be 
entitled. and agrees not to attempt to claim a deduction for any civil penalty payment made 
pursuant to this CAFO. Any attempt by Respondent to deduct any sueh payments shall constitute 
a viulation of this CAfO. 

35. Pursuant to 31 U.S.c. § 311" EPA is entitled to m:;se!l~ ink'rest and pt'nalties un 
debts owed to the United States and a charge to cover the co:tt OfpfoceRsing and handling a 
delinquent claim, Interest wiH therelore begin to accrue on the civil penalty from the efic(...-nve 
date ofth!s CAFO ifthe penalty is 110t Imid by the date required. Interest will be assessed at the 
rate established by the Secretary ofTreasury pursuant to 31 usc. § 3717. A charge will he 
as.e,es.~ed to cover the costs ofdebt collection, includill£ pn.:lcessing and handHng costs and 
.Homey lee,. In addition, a penalty charge will be assessed on any portion oft he debt that 
remains delinquent more than I1tnety (90) days after payment is due, 

36. Complainant and Respondent shall bear their mvn costs and attorney fees in this 
matter. 

37. This CAFO shaH be binding upon the Respondent, its successors and as:signs, 

38. l'hc following individual is authoriud to receive ~rvj0t: Jo1' EPA in this 
proceeding: 
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Caron B, f7alconer 
U.S. hPA, Region 4 
Air. Pesticides & Toxic Iviunagcmertt DivisJon 
61l'orsyth Street, S,W, 
Atl!lllta, Georgia 30303 
(404) 562-8451 

39. Each undersigned rcprc!lentative 0 the partks to this CAFO certifies that he or she 
is fully authorized hy the party represented to enter into this CAFO and legally bind that party to 
it 

VI. Effective Date 

40, The effeo~ve date of lhis CAFO 'hall be the date upon which the CAFO is filed 
wilh the Ri:giona] Hearing Clerk. 

AGREED AND CONSENTED TO: 

State Industries, Inc. 

[)ale:i!/~~Lm~~me:~:5,~~m (Typed or Pnnled) 
IJtle: II (Typed or Printed) 

u.s. Environmental Protection Agency 

Bv 4'~/t & ~ 
~)--D~~-erly H:Bnnister:recto~----
--b Air. Pesticitlt:ti & T oxics 


;\ianagement Division 

Region 4 


"': 

APPROVED A)lD SO ORDERED this 17 day of ~ ,201 L 

k ___ 6. ~ 
SlL'{an R. Schuh 
Regional Juuicial Officer 
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CllRTIFICATE OF SERVICE 

I hereby certify that I have this day servcd a true and COlTect copy of the foregoing 

Consent Agreement and Fina1 Order, in the Matter of Swe Industries, Inc" 

EPCRA-04-20 11-20~.Wl1 on the parties lisled below in the manner indicated: 

Caron B. Falconer (Via EPA's internal mail) 
U.S. EPA, Region 4 
Air, Pesticides & Toxies Management Division 
61 Forsyth Street 
Atlanta. GA 3030.3 

Robert Caplan (Via EPA's internal mail)
U.s. EPA, Region 4 
Office of EnvironmentaI Accountability 
61 Forsyth Street 
Atlanta. GA 30.30.3 

Mr. Wallace E. Goedwin (Via Cerlilied Mail ~ Return Receipt 
APCOM, a division of Requested) 
State Industries, Inc. 
500 Tennessee Waltz Parkway 
Ashland City. TN 370.15 

C)-I)-I!
Date ____....____:1_ 

United Slates Environmental 
Protection Agency. Region 4 
Atlanta Federal Center 
61 Forsyth Street, S.W. 
Atlanta, GA 30.303 
(40.4) 562-9511 

Patricia.':. Bullock, Regional Hearin~ 
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EPA ACCOIJNTS RECElV ABLE COrnOL NUM8E11 FORM 

TO BECOMPLIm!D BY mE ORUiJNATING Off!g.: 
, (AltadI.copJOCUleIlal .........u '1'.. IeUa'CODelaatulUltitlp....., / 

f1dolonD_ -.-....s_a_u_-__._i_l_.o_n___-,-::=::--________.. £1t1 fli 
lN~ i~) 

Region 4. ORe, ORA (404J~95t)4 

,Dn ... ...-.--"rr _,a)...'--N-_-::._::::::.:-"'-:.-IC:..;;..r..;'-Tl-,IDecnIt::.::.~(:;;OIIIarI:;;;:::;----\-"V--I-A-'-.-.-,-,.--.. ....:.:"',iIO 
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o Ot&....~*C_ ........ 1 •• 

o 1'1l1lI11 ••-1""'" 
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t~""-"""C' r I?IM ..d,...., ....._" ") 

1'IIoT....__".... ,..... (.,~
iff_"M " __ ...... Ill ................... s.ou..rtldl.,u.r-.) 

11IIIC.-~NiIJl .a, t7>(rld tV ~)dtl~J.r;2'7.- (6) 

n.SUa$pll::ilkSu..l'wtiI~NN"·.'______________________ 

t'beD'MSAca.rra ...... ,t'lc::o.ent~1Ia n..e,______ 

...._.... 0..... eOl'fllttl.o\.Dt 
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